
 

The Lewis & Clark, Olney-Wallooskee Citizens Advisory Committee will host virtual 
meetings on GoToMeeting  
During the COVID-19 pandemic, the County remains committed to broad community engagement 
and transparency of government. To provide an opportunity for public input while physical 
distancing guidelines are in effect, the County will host virtual meetings on the GoToMeeting 
platform.  
 

Join the meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.  
https://www.gotomeet.me/GailHenrikson/lewis--clark-olney-walloskee-cac  
 
You can also dial in using your phone.  
United States (Toll Free): 1 877 309 2073  
United States: +1 (646) 749-3129  
 
Access Code: 372-565-141  
 

Those wishing to provide input will need to be recognized to speak by the Chairperson. The public 
may also submit comments via email to be read to the Citizen Advisory Committee at the 
designated time. Please send submissions to comdev@co.clatsop.or.us. 
 

 
All Comprehensive Plan Citizen Advisory Committee meetings are open to the public.  Community members are welcome 

to observe and provide written comment at any time to comdev.co.clatsop.or.us. As time allows, verbal comment is 
welcome during the time specified on the agenda. 

 

NOTE TO CAC MEMBERS: Please contact the Community Development Department (503-325-8611) if you are unable 
to attend this meeting. 
 

ACCESSIBILITY: This meeting is accessible to persons with disabilities or who wish to attend but do not have 

computer access or cell phone access. Please call 503-325-8611 if you require special accommodations at least 

48 hours prior to the meeting in order to participate. 

 

TIME TOPIC LEAD 
6:00 PM Call to Order L-COW CAC Chair 
6:05 PM Introductions All 
6:10 PM Review of Meeting Summary 

- August 27, 2020 
L-COW CAC Members 

6:15 PM Public Comment and Input Public 
6:30 PM Review of Goal 5 Topics:  Historic and Cultural Resources 

     - Overview of existing policies and inventories 
     - Review of existing policies and inventories 
  - Identify new policies and additions to inventories 

L-COW CAC Members 
Staff 
L-COW CAC Members 
L-COW CAC Members 

7:15 PM Public Comment and Input Public 
7:30 PM Review Next Meeting Date and Time L-COW CAC Members 
7:40 PM Closing comments and adjournment L-COW CAC Members 

CLATSOP COUNTY  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

LEWIS & CLARK, OLNEY-WALLOOSKEE 
PLANNING AREA 

 CITIZEN ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

September 24, 2020, 6:00 PM 
ELECTRONIC MEETING 
43114 HILLCREST LOOP 

Astoria, OR 97103 

https://www.gotomeet.me/GailHenrikson/lewis--clark-olney-walloskee-cac
tel:+18773092073,,372565141
tel:+16467493129,,372565141


 

 1 

Summary of August 27, 2020 1 
Lewis & Clark, Olney-Wallooskee CAC Meeting #7 2 

Electronic Meeting 3 
 4 

The meeting was convened at 6:00 p.m. by Mike Magyar, Chair. 5 
 6 
L-COW CAC Members Present  Guests  Ex-Officio   Staff Present  7 
Mike Magyar  “db”  Commissioner Pamela Wev  Gail Henrikson 8 
Jim Neikes  Lam Quang, PC     Julia Decker 9 
  “Local Resident” 10 
 11 
L-COW CAC Members Absent  12 
Andrea Mazzerella 13 
Paula Bue 14 
     15 
Minutes: 16 
The minutes of July 23, 2020, were approved by consensus of Chair Magyar and Mr. Neikes. 17 
 18 
Public Comment and Input: 19 
No members of the public requested to speak. 20 
 21 
Review of Goal 5 Worksheet: 22 
The committee began with the Wetlands section of Goal 5, with Planning Manager Julia Decker noting the topic 23 
is a very large one, due to the role of wetlands in wildlife and fish habitat, including threatened and endangered 24 
species, flood storage capacity, water supply and quality, and aesthetic and recreation. She explained the topic 25 
would circle back to the committee in the spring but that committee members should start familiarizing 26 
themselves with the topics now and looking at the worksheet. She indicated staff was interested in learning if 27 
there are wetlands and riparian corridors that aren’t listed and should be, or if there are changes in the location 28 
of existing listed wetlands; she noted it recently became apparent the county code does not include a definition 29 
of “riparian corridors.” She thought issues such as this would be addressed in the coming months. 30 
 31 
In response to Policy 1, “The County will protect identified significant freshwater wetlands, for which no 32 
conflicting uses have been identified, from incompatible uses,” Jim Neikes commented there are different levels 33 
of wetlands, varying form significant wetlands to puddles that show up after heavy rains. He complained the 34 
wetlands inventories mean nothing and are useless except to entrap the public into making poor decisions that 35 
cost fines, which are paid to state and federal government agencies. He said what is needed is a real inventory, 36 
so landowners can identify problematic areas. 37 
 38 
In response to questions from Commissioner Wev, Community Development Director Gail Henrikson responded 39 
the Board of County Commissioners had appointed an ad hoc wetlands advisory committee that met for two or 40 
three years before bringing four recommendations to the Board in 2017. With staff changes and no clear 41 
direction from the Board, no action subsequently occurred and the committee never met again.  42 
 43 
Ms. Henrikson explained the recent transition from the National Wetlands Inventory to the Statewide Wetlands 44 
Inventory, which refined the national one, was still fairly broad and the only way someone can really tell if 45 
wetlands exist in a specific locale is to hire a consultant to do a delineation and get it reviewed by the Oregon 46 
Department of State Lands for concurrence and approval. 47 
 48 
Mr. Neikes asked why the county doesn’t require delineations, noting the maps now are apparently not 49 
conclusive or binding. He wondered how the county could issue permits under such circumstances. Ms. 50 
Henrikson thought the expense of delineations was a contributing factor. Mr. Neikes estimated the cost of 51 



 

 2 

delineations to be between $10,000 and $20,000 and added he thought the inventories were worthless, saying if 1 
the wetlands maps show wetlands, they are considered wetlands and the applicant has to get a delineation; 2 
however, if the maps don’t show wetlands, wetlands may still be present. In this case, he said, the applicant may 3 
move forward without realizing the situation and end up in violation and fines from the state.  4 
 5 
Chair Magyar commented Clatsop County WebMaps notes on the opening pages a variety of disclaimers 6 
regarding content and scale. It can only provide a general overview, he said, and discouraged making an 7 
economic decision based on the map without obtaining professional services. Mr. Neikes asked why have the 8 
inventories if the inventories are not correct. 9 
 10 
Ms. Decker responded, stating WebMaps is a tool that gives general information, but staff cautions people that 11 
it is not an exact device. The state, through the Oregon Department of State Lands (DSL), regulates wetlands, 12 
Ms. Decker, not the county, so Planning staff uses the tool to provide overviews to people about what they 13 
should be aware of when purchasing or developing land. Also, staff requires a copy of approval documents from 14 
the DSL from applicants who propose to develop in mapped wetlands or within a specific distance of wetlands. 15 
She added staff is required to provide notice to DSL if someone is developing in an area with wetlands and DSL 16 
has 30 days in which to respond. Staff can issue the application “over the counter” and applicants proceed at 17 
their own risk. She wondered if this is might be where Mr. Neikes might be running into difficulty. She said it 18 
isn’t the county that requires a delineation, it’s the state, and staff recommends applicants check with the state 19 
before starting to bring in fill, for example. She suggested the CAC might have recommendations about the 20 
distance from mapped wetlands the county should use for notification purposes, saying this had been requested 21 
of DSL, too, but she did not believe the department had received a response. 22 
 23 
She added that the ad hoc committee’s final minutes, agenda summary to the Board, and recommendations 24 
started on page 82 of this evening’s agenda. 25 
 26 
Chair Magyar suggested that each wetlands delineation approved by DSL be loaded into Clatsop County 27 
WebMaps with a date. Ms. Decker recalled the concept had been discussed at the department level, and Ms. 28 
Henrikson recalled discussing the topic with Clatsop County’s GIS Department about two years ago. At the time, 29 
GIS had so many other projects that staff didn’t pursue the matter. Chair Magyar thought it would fairly easy to 30 
upload the data and would save people money in the long run.  31 
 32 
Chair Magyar, looking at Policy 1, said it didn’t appear to have been met. The group discussed Policy 2, which 33 
addresses a specific site to be preserved for gravel extraction. Ms. Decker pointed out the distinction between 34 
the Lake and Wetlands Zone, which is a county regulated zone, and the National and Statewide Wetlands 35 
Inventories, which are layers regulated by the state. There is overlap among them, she said, but they are not the 36 
same and have different boundaries.  37 
 38 
Ms. Henrikson explained there are questions about where Site 6, the gravel extraction site, actually is, given the 39 
vagueness of the adopted map in Goal 5. The distinction is important, she said, to avoid the site becoming a 40 
non-conforming use. Mr. Neikes recalled it as the site where the old alder mill was, with a manmade pond, now 41 
called Mill Pond Park, inside the Seaside city limits. Chair Magyar pointed out the old railroad grade nearby, 42 
visible in the aerial photo, which he suggested was a clue to the location, given rail often is the preferred 43 
method to transport gravel and rock.  44 
 45 
Ms. Decker thought the information would allow the department to narrow the search parameters; based on 46 
what can be found, it may be that Policy 2 can be deleted. 47 
 48 
Regarding Policy 3, which addresses Columbian white tail deer habitat and Driscoll Slough, Ms. Decker outlined 49 
where the area is and the ownerships, which are primarily Georgia Pacific Wauna Mill and Teevin Brothers.  Mr. 50 
Neikes noted Teevin has for years been trying to develop an access through to Hwy 30 that avoids using Ferry 51 



 

 3 

Dock Road in Westport. Commissioner Wev, provided an update. She explained the county’s Public Works 1 
Department developed a plan to assist Teevin with a new road that would allow the company to avoid the 2 
county road, where the ferry dock is and the county park is being expanded. Negotiations currently are 3 
underway, she said. 4 
 5 
In response to a question from Commissioner Wev, Ms. Decker said she would be obtaining information from 6 
Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife regarding new or updated lists of sites for Columbia white tail deer, 7 
heron rookeries, bald eagle nests, and other important habitat information. 8 
 9 
The group reviewed the Heavy Industrial Zone and the wetland layer, which overlap on the east end of the 10 
Wauna Mill site and the potential area for the Teevin access point. 11 
 12 
The group did not have any additions or changes to Policy 3 components. The members briefly discussed 13 
wetland areas and alternate routes for emergency use, the relocation of the county Public Works facilities, and 14 
the fact that the area designated “Development” in the Comprehensive Plan, with most of the light industrial 15 
zoning, the utility districts and the fire district station, is located within the flood zone with a high percentage of 16 
wetlands, which sets up conflicts between property owners and the Oregon Department of State Lands.  17 
 18 
Closing Comments and Adjournment: 19 
The committee agreed on September 24th at 6 p.m. The agenda will include cultural and historic sites. 20 
 21 
As there was no further business or discussion, the meeting was adjourned at 7:22 p.m. 22 



Clatsop County 
Community Development – Planning 
 

 

800 Exchange St., Suite 100 
Astoria, OR 97103 

(503) 325-8611 phone 
(503) 338-3606 fax 

www.co.clatsop.or.us 

TO: Lewis & Clark, Olney-Wallooskee Citizen Advisory Committee Members 
 

FROM:  Gail Henrikson, Community Development Director, and Julia Decker, Planning 

 Manager 

 

DATE: August 18, 2020 
 

RE: GOAL 5 RESOURCE TOPIC – WETLANDS AND RIPARIAN CORRIDORS 
 

 

ACTION ITEMS FOR AUGUST 27, 2020, MEETING: 

(1) The inventoried wetlands listed in the comprehensive plan must be reviewed to determine 

whether those wetlands should continue to be listed as wetland resources. 

(2) The existing policies addressing wetlands in Goal 5 of the comprehensive plan need to be 

reviewed to verify whether those policies should be removed, retained, or amended. 

(3) The LCOW CAC should recommend including any wetlands within the Lewis & Clark, 

Olney-Wallooskee planning area that are not currently included in the Goal 5 wetland 

inventory, but which should be. 

(4) The LCOW CAC should identify any new issues regarding wetlands that should be 

addressed in the comprehensive plan and develop proposed policies designed to address 

those issues.  

(5) The LCOW CAC should recommend riparian corridors that should be listed in the 

comprehensive plan inventory. 

(6) The LCOW CAC should identify any issues regarding riparian corridors that should be 

addressed in the comprehensive plan and develop proposed policies designed to address 

those issues.  

 

(NOTE: The LCOW CAC should be aware of state statutes regarding right-to-farm and 

the Forest Practices Act that prohibit local governments from adopting regulations that 

would make forest practice or farm practice a nuisance or trespass (ORS 30.934-30.935).  

 

Overview  

Statewide Planning Goal 5 – Natural Resources, Scenic and Historic Areas, and Open Spaces – 

requires the following inventories to be provided and reviewed in each jurisdictions’ 

Comprehensive Plan: 

 

• Riparian corridors, including water and riparian areas and fish habitat 

• Wetlands  

• Wildlife Habitat 

• Federal Wild and Scenic Rivers 

• State Scenic Waterways 

• Groundwater Resources 

• Approved Oregon Recreation Trails 

• Natural Areas 

 

 



LEWIS & CLARK, OLNEY-WALLOOSKEE CITIZEN ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

GOAL 5 WORKSHEET COVER MEMO 

AUGUST 27, 2020 

PAGE 2 

 

• Wilderness Areas 

• Mineral and Aggregate Resources 

• Energy sources 

• Cultural areas 

 

Statewide Planning Goal 5 also encourages local governments and state agencies to maintain 

current inventories of the following resources:  

 

• Historic Resources 

• Open Space 

• Scenic Views and Sites 

 

These required and encouraged inventories were included in the original adoption of the Clatsop 

County Comprehensive Plan in 1980.  Since the cessation of required periodic review in 2007, 

these inventories have not been routinely maintained or updated. As Goal 5 is a complex 

cornucopia of overlapping and intertwined resources, it may be easier for committee members 

and staff to break this vast goal into more easily-digestible pieces by focusing on one or two 

particular resources at a time.  To that end, the August 27, 2020, Lewis & Clark, Olney-

Wallooskee Citizen Advisory Committee meeting will be focused on Riparian Corridors 

and Wetlands. 

 

Wetlands in Oregon 

Oregon’s wetlands and their ecosystems are a highly diverse resource that reflects the extreme 

physical and biological variability of the state. Streamside wetlands in the Coast Range provide 

food and shelter to threatened juvenile salmon and trout. Additional examples of wetland 

functions and the services they provide:  

• Flood storage and water supply 

• Water quality improvement 

• Food-web support 

• Wildlife and fish habitat 

• Rare and endangered species 

• Aesthetics, recreation and education 

Encroachments Into Wetlands 

Oregon’s Removal-Fill Law (ORS 196.795-990) is administered by the Department of State 

Lands (DSL). The law requires people who plan to remove or fill material in wetlands or 

waterways to obtain a permit from DSL. The law applies to all landowners, whether private 

individuals or public agencies. The law was enacted in 1967 to ensure protection and the best use 

of Oregon’s water resources for home, commercial, wildlife habitat, public navigation, fishing 

and recreational uses. 

Clatsop County Regulations 

Clatsop County’s Comprehensive Plan addresses estuarine wetlands in Goal 16 and coastal 

shoreland wetlands in Goal 17.  Goal 5 identifies nine areas of major non-coastal shoreland 

wetlands. Policies related to wetlands preservation are also listed in Goal 5.  

https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors196.html


LEWIS & CLARK, OLNEY-WALLOOSKEE CITIZEN ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

GOAL 5 WORKSHEET COVER MEMO 

AUGUST 27, 2020 

PAGE 3 

 

Clatsop County Ad Hoc Wetlands Advisory Committee 

In 2014 the County received a technical assistance grant from the State to identify possible 

countywide wetland policy options and to develop recommendations to ensure protection of 

wetlands.  The Board of Commissioners appointed an ad hoc Wetlands Advisory Committee that 

met from 2015-2017.  The committee presented four recommendations to the Board of 

Commissioners on March 22, 2017.  Following that meeting, several key staff left the 

department and further action on the recommendations was postponed pending the completion of 

DSL’s Statewide Wetland Inventory (see below). 

Wetland Inventories 

County staff references the Statewide Wetland Inventory (SWI) to determine whether a proposed 

development or use may impact a mapped wetland. The SWI map consists of the following 

layers: 

• National Wetlands Inventory (NWI), US Fish & Wildlife Service, updated annually; 

• Local Wetlands Inventories (in Clatsop County, there currently are DSL-approved LWIs 

for Arch Cape, Gearhart, and Warrenton); 

• National Hydrography Dataset, US Geological Survey; 

• Predominately Hydric Soil Map Units, USDA Natural Resources Conservation Service. 

 

If it appears a mapped wetland may be impacted by a proposed development or use, staff is 

required to notify DSL by submitting a Wetland Land Use Notice (WLUN) form. DSL staff then 

reviews the notice and responds within 30 days. The response from DSL states whether a state 

permit is required, or whether more information, such as a site-specific wetland delineation, is 

required to make a final determination. The property owner then works with the state to 

determine what, if any, permits and mitigation may be required. A link to the SWI map can be 

found here. Clatsop County GIS staff has also added the SWI layers to Clatsop County 

Webmaps. 

 

Clatsop County Goal 5 Policies Related to Wetlands 

Of the 626 pages comprising Clatsop County Goal 5, 18 pages contain information or policies 

related to wetlands.  No separate policies were included that specifically addressed riparian 

corridors.  The adopted wetlands policies are listed below. Note: Wetland Sites 8 and 9 are not 

shown on the adopted map included in the comprehensive plan. 

POLICY 1 

The County will protect identified significant freshwater wetlands, for which no conflicting 

uses have been identified, from incompatible uses. 

  

POLICY 2 

A ten acre site within Wetland Site 6 shall be provided for gravel extraction. 

 

POLICY 3 

The following requirements shall apply to Wetland Site 7 (which also contains white-tail 

deer habitat). 

 

https://www.oregon.gov/dsl/WW/Pages/SWI.aspx


LEWIS & CLARK, OLNEY-WALLOOSKEE CITIZEN ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

GOAL 5 WORKSHEET COVER MEMO 

AUGUST 27, 2020 

PAGE 4 

 

a. All industrial development shall be located north of the railroad right-of-way. The area 

between the railroad right-of-way and U.S. Highway 30 shall be designated for protection 

of its wetland characteristics. 

b. Development of land adjacent to Driscoll Slough shall be carried out in a way that will 

minimize the alteration of riparian vegetation, degradation of water quality and stream 

sedimentation. Proposed development will be evaluated against the Department of Fish 

and Wildlife’s management objectives of maintaining vegetative cover, particularly 

riparian vegetation, and the maintenance of corridors that provide for deer movement 

between habitat areas. Construction of a bridge or other transportation access across the 

slough shall be the minimum necessary to accomplish the project. Piling is preferred to 

filling for any access corridor across Driscoll Slough. 

c. Industrial development on the eastern portion of the site shall be designed to minimize or 

avoid the removal of riparian vegetation along Westport Slough. Riparian vegetation 

removal shall be permitted where direct access to the water is required. 

d. Filling of the site shall not be permitted until a specific development proposal has been 

reviewed and approved by the County.  

 

Goal 5 Wetlands and the Lewis & Clark, Olney-Wallooskee Planning Area 

Goal 5 identifies nine wetland areas that are not covered by either Goal 16 (Estuarine Resources) 

or Goal 17 (Coastal Shorelands).  Most Goal 5 wetlands are located in the Clatsop Plains 

Planning area; none is located in the Lewis & Clark, Olney-Wallooskee Planning Area. Wetlands 

located in the Miles Crossing/Jeffers Garden/Lewis & Clark/Youngs River area are covered 

extensively by the Shoreland Overlay and Goals 16 and 17.  

 

 
 

 

Goal 5 wetlands were identified in the report Significant Shoreland and Wetland Habitats in the 

Clatsop Plains prepared by Duncan Thomas for CTIC and CREST in June 1982.  The purpose of 

the report was to identify “wetland, shoreland and riparian values, and describing the significant 

sites in the Clatsop Plains and the Columbia River Floodplain.” 
 

https://www.co.clatsop.or.us/sites/default/files/fileattachments/land_use_planning/page/16971/duncan_thomas_significant_shoreland_wetland_habitats_clatsop_plains.pdf
https://www.co.clatsop.or.us/sites/default/files/fileattachments/land_use_planning/page/16971/duncan_thomas_significant_shoreland_wetland_habitats_clatsop_plains.pdf


LEWIS & CLARK, OLNEY-WALLOOSKEE CITIZEN ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

GOAL 5 WORKSHEET COVER MEMO 

AUGUST 27, 2020 

PAGE 5 

 

 

SUPPORT MATRIALS 
Goal 5 – Wetlands Background Materials, Attached (also sent via email from Ian Sisson, Planner, 

on April 13, 2020): 

• A selection of relevant excerpts from the Clatsop County Comprehensive Plan 

• Statewide Planning Goal 5 and Guidelines 

• A selection of relevant Oregon Administrative Rules implementing Goal 5 

• Two factsheets from Oregon Department of State Lands: 

o Assessing Functions and Values of Wetlands and Waterways 

o Statewide Wetlands Inventory 

• Excerpts from the Oregon State of the Environment Report: 

o Chapter 3.4 - Summary of Current Status and Health of Oregon's Freshwater Wetlands 

o Chapter 3.5 - Summary of Current Status and Health of Oregon's Riparian Areas 

Agenda and Minutes of March 22, 2017 Joint Work Session – Recommendations from the County’s ad-

hoc Wetlands Advisory Committee to the Planning Commission and Board of Commissioners 

 
Additional reference materials for those interested in further research and technical information: 

• Oregon Wetland Planning Guidebook by Oregon DSL/DLCD 

• Oregon Freshwater Assessment Methodology by Oregon DSL 

• Significant Shoreland and Wetland Habitats in the Clatsop Plains by Duncan Thomas, June 1982 

https://www.oregon.gov/dsl/WW/Documents/wet_plan_guide.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/dsl/WW/Documents/OFWAM.pdf
https://www.co.clatsop.or.us/sites/default/files/fileattachments/land_use_planning/page/16971/duncan_thomas_significant_shoreland_wetland_habitats_clatsop_plains.pdf


OAR 660-023-0200 
Historic Resources 

(1)  For purposes of this rule, the following definitions apply: 

(a)  “Demolition” means any act that destroys, removes, or relocates, in whole or 
part, a significant historic resource such that its historic, cultural, or architectural 
character and significance is lost. This definition applies directly to local land use 
decisions regarding a National Register Resource. This definition applies directly 
to other local land use decisions regarding a historic resource unless the local 
comprehensive plan or land use regulations contain a different definition. 

(b)  “Designation” is a decision by a local government to include a significant 
resource on the resource list. 

(c)  “Historic context statement” is an element of a comprehensive plan that 
describes the important broad patterns of historical development in a 
community and its region during a specified time period. It also identifies historic 
resources that are representative of the important broad patterns of historical 
development. 

(d)  “Historic preservation plan” is an element of a comprehensive plan that contains 
the local government’s goals and policies for historic resource preservation and 
the processes for creating and amending the program to achieve the goal. 

(e)  “Historic resources” are those buildings, structures, objects, sites, or districts 
that potentially have a significant relationship to events or conditions of the 
human past. 

(f)  “Locally significant historic resource” means a building, structure, object, site, or 
district deemed by a local government to be a significant resource according to 
the requirements of this division and criteria in the comprehensive plan. 

(g)  “National Register Resource” means buildings, structures, objects, sites, or 
districts listed in the National Register of Historic Places pursuant to the National 
Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (PL 89-665; 16 U.S.C. 470). 

(h)  “Owner”: 

(A)  Means the owner of fee title to the property as shown in the deed 
records of the county where the property is located; or 

(B)  Means the purchaser under a land sale contract, if there is a recorded 
land sale contract in force for the property; or 

https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/viewSingleRule.action?ruleVrsnRsn=242562


(C)  Means, if the property is owned by the trustee of a revocable trust, the 
settlor of a revocable trust, except that when the trust becomes 
irrevocable only the trustee is the owner; and 

(D)  Does not include individuals, partnerships, corporations or public 
agencies holding easements or less than fee interests (including 
leaseholds) of any nature; or 

(E)  Means, for a locally significant historic resource with multiple owners, 
including a district, a simple majority of owners as defined in (A)-(D). 

(F)  Means, for National Register Resources, the same as defined in 36 CFR 
60.3(k). 

(i)  “Protect” means to Wrequire local government review of applications for 
demolition, relocation, or major exterior alteration of a historic resource, or to 
delay approval of, or deny, permits for these actions in order to provide 
opportunities for continued preservation. 

(j)  “Significant historic resource” means a locally significant historic resource or a 
National Register Resource. 

(2)  Relationship of Historic Resource Protection to the Standard Goal 5 Process. 

(a)  Local governments are not required to amend acknowledged plans or land use 
regulations in order to provide new or amended inventories, resource lists or 
programs regarding historic resources, except as specified in section (8). Local 
governments are encouraged to inventory and designate historic resources and 
must adopt historic preservation regulations to protect significant historic 
resources. 

(b)  The requirements of the standard Goal 5 process in OAR 660-023-0030 through 
660-023-0050, in conjunction with the requirements of this rule, apply when 
local governments choose to amend acknowledged historic preservation plans 
and regulations. 

(c)  Local governments are not required to apply the ESEE process pursuant to OAR 
660-023-0040 in order to determine a program to protect historic resources. 

(3)  Comprehensive Plan Contents. Local comprehensive plans should foster and encourage 
the preservation, management, and enhancement of significant historic resources 
within the jurisdiction in a manner conforming with, but not limited by, the provisions of 
ORS 358.605. In developing local historic preservation programs, local governments 
should follow the recommendations in the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards and 



Guidelines for Archeology and Historic Preservation, produced by the National Park 
Service. Local governments should develop a local historic context statement and adopt 
a historic preservation plan and a historic preservation ordinance in conjunction with 
inventorying historic resources. 

(4)  Inventorying Historic Resources. When a local government chooses to inventory historic 
resources, it must do so pursuant to OAR 660-023-0030, this section, and sections (5) 
through (7). Local governments are encouraged to provide opportunities for 
community-wide participation as part of the inventory process. Local governments are 
encouraged to complete the inventory in a manner that satisfies the requirements for 
such studies published by the Oregon State Historic Preservation Office and provide the 
inventory to that office in a format compatible with the Oregon Historic Sites Database. 

(5)  Evaluating and Determining Significance. After a local government completes an 
inventory of historic resources, it should evaluate which resources on the inventory are 
significant pursuant to OAR 660-023-0030(4) and this section. 

(a)  The evaluation of significance should be based on the National Register Criteria 
for Evaluation, historic context statement and historic preservation plan. Criteria 
may include, but are not limited to, consideration of whether the resource has: 

(A)  Significant association with events that have made a significant 
contribution to the broad patterns of local, regional, state, or national 
history; 

(B)  Significant association with the lives of persons significant to local, 
regional, state, or national history; 

(C)  Distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of construction, or 
represents the work of a master, or possesses high artistic values, or 
represents a significant and distinguishable entity whose components 
may lack individual distinction; 

(D)  A high likelihood that, if preserved, would yield information important in 
prehistory or history; or 

(E)  Relevance within the local historic context and priorities described in the 
historic preservation plan. 

(b)  Local governments may delegate the determination of locally significant historic 
resources to a local planning commission or historic resources commission. 

(6)  Designating Locally Significant Historic Resources. After inventorying and evaluating the 
significance of historic resources, if a local government chooses to protect a historic 



resource, it must adopt or amend a resource list (i.e., “designate” such resources) 
pursuant to OAR 660-023-0030(5) and this section. 

(a)  The resource list must be adopted or amended as a land use decision. 

(b)  Local governments must allow owners of inventoried historic resources to refuse 
historic resource designation at any time during the designation process in 
subsection (a) and must not include a site on a resource list if the owner of the 
property objects to its designation on the public record. A local government is 
not required to remove a historic resource from an inventory because an owner 
refuses to consent to designation. 

(7)  Historic Resource Protection Ordinances. Local governments must adopt land use 
regulations to protect locally significant historic resources designated under section (6). 
This section replaces OAR 660-023-0050. Historic protection ordinances should be 
consistent with standards and guidelines recommended in the Standards and Guidelines 
for Archeology and Historic Preservation published by the U.S. Secretary of the Interior, 
produced by the National Park Service. 

(8) National Register Resources are significant historic resources. For these resources, local 
governments are not required to follow the process described in OAR 660-023-0030 
through 660-023-0050 or sections (4) through (6). Instead, a local government: 

(a)  Must protect National Register Resources, regardless of whether the resources 
are designated in the local plan or land use regulations, by review of demolition 
or relocation that includes, at minimum, a public hearing process that results in 
approval, approval with conditions, or denial and considers the following factors: 
condition, historic integrity, age, historic significance, value to the community, 
economic consequences, design or construction rarity, and consistency with and 
consideration of other policy objectives in the acknowledged comprehensive 
plan. Local jurisdictions may exclude accessory structures and non-contributing 
resources within a National Register nomination; 

(b)  May apply additional protection measures. For a National Register Resource 
listed in the National Register of Historic Places after the effective date of this 
rule, additional protection measures may be applied only upon considering, at a 
public hearing, the historic characteristics identified in the National Register 
nomination; the historic significance of the resource; the relationship to the 
historic context statement and historic preservation plan contained in the 
comprehensive plan, if they exist; the goals and policies in the comprehensive 
plan; and the effects of the additional protection measures on the ability of 
property owners to maintain and modify features of their property. Protection 
measures applied by a local government to a National Register resource listed 



before the effective date of this rule continue to apply until the local 
government amends or removes them; and 

(c)  Must amend its land use regulations to protect National Register Resources in 
conformity with subsections (a) and (b). Until such regulations are adopted, 
subsections (a) and (b) shall apply directly to National Register Resources. 

(9)  Removal of a historic resource from a resource list by a local government is a land use 
decision and is subject to this section. 

(a)  A local government must remove a property from the resource list if the 
designation was imposed on the property by the local government and the 
owner at the time of designation: 

(A)  Has retained ownership since the time of the designation, and 

(B)  Can demonstrate that the owner objected to the designation on the 
public record, or 

(C)  Was not provided an opportunity to object to the designation, and 

(D)  Requests that the local government remove the property from the 
resource list. 

(b)  Except as provided in subsection (a), a local government may only remove a 
resource from the resource list if the circumstances in paragraphs (A), (B), or (C) 
exist. 

(A)  The resource has lost the qualities for which it was originally recognized; 

(B)  Additional information shows that the resource no longer satisfies the 
criteria for recognition as a historic resource or did not satisfy the criteria 
for recognition as a historic resource at time of listing; 

(C)  The local building official declares that the resource poses a clear and 
immediate hazard to public safety and must be demolished to abate the 
unsafe condition. 

(10)  A local government shall not issue a permit for demolition or modification of a locally 
significant historic resource during the 120-day period following: 

(a) The date of the property owner’s refusal to consent to the historic resource 
designation, or 



(b)  The date of an application to demolish or modify the resource if the local 
government has not designated the locally significant resource under section (6). 

(11)  OAR 660-023-0200(1)(a) and (1)(h) are effective upon filing of the rule with the 
Secretary of State. 

(12)  OAR 660-023-0200(8) is effective upon filing of the rule with the Secretary of State and 
applies directly to local government permit decisions until the local government has 
amended its land use regulations as required by OAR 660-023-0200(8)(c). 

(13)  OAR 660-023-0200(9) is effective upon filing of the rule with the Secretary of State and 
applies directly to local government decisions until the local government has amended 
its land use regulations to conform with the rule. 

(14)  OAR 660-023-0200(10) is effective upon filing of the rule with the Secretary of State and 
applies directly to local government permit decisions. 

Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 197.040 
Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 197.040, 197.225 - 197.245 & 197.772 
History: 
LCDD 3-2018, amend filed 02/23/2018, effective 02/23/2018 
LCDD 1-2017, f. & cert. ef. 2-10-17 
LCDC 2-1996, f. 8-30-96, cert. ef. 9-1-96 

 

https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/viewReceiptTRIM.action?ptId=6844149


OAR 660-023-0030 
Inventory Process 

(1)  Inventories provide the information necessary to locate and evaluate resources 
and develop programs to protect such resources. The purpose of the inventory 
process is to compile or update a list of significant Goal 5 resources in a 
jurisdiction. This rule divides the inventory process into four steps. However, all 
four steps are not necessarily applicable, depending on the type of Goal 5 
resource and the scope of a particular PAPA or periodic review work task. For 
example, when proceeding under a quasi-judicial PAPA for a particular site, the 
initial inventory step in section (2) of this rule is not applicable in that a local 
government may rely on information submitted by applicants and other 
participants in the local process. The inventory process may be followed for a 
single site, for sites in a particular geographical area, or for the entire jurisdiction 
or urban growth boundary (UGB), and a single inventory process may be 
followed for multiple resource categories that are being considered 
simultaneously. The standard Goal 5 inventory process consists of the following 
steps, which are set out in detail in sections (2) through (5) of this rule and further 
explained in sections (6) and (7) of this rule: 

(a)  Collect information about Goal 5 resource sites; 

(b)  Determine the adequacy of the information; 

(c)  Determine the significance of resource sites; and 

(d)  Adopt a list of significant resource sites. 

(2)  Collect information about Goal 5 resource sites: The inventory process begins 
with the collection of existing and available information, including inventories, 
surveys, and other applicable data about potential Goal 5 resource sites. If a 
PAPA or periodic review work task pertains to certain specified sites, the local 
government is not required to collect information regarding other resource sites in 
the jurisdiction. When collecting information about potential Goal 5 sites, local 
governments shall, at a minimum: 

(a)  Notify state and federal resource management agencies and request 
current resource information; and 

(b)  Consider other information submitted in the local process. 

(3)  Determine the adequacy of the information: In order to conduct the Goal 5 
process, information about each potential site must be adequate. A local 
government may determine that the information about a site is inadequate to 
complete the Goal 5 process based on the criteria in this section. This 
determination shall be clearly indicated in the record of proceedings. The issue of 

https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/viewSingleRule.action?ruleVrsnRsn=175711


adequacy may be raised by the department or objectors, but final determination 
is made by the commission or the Land Use Board of Appeals, as provided by 
law. When local governments determine that information about a site is 
inadequate, they shall not proceed with the Goal 5 process for such sites unless 
adequate information is obtained, and they shall not regulate land uses in order 
to protect such sites. The information about a particular Goal 5 resource site shall 
be deemed adequate if it provides the location, quality and quantity of the 
resource, as follows: 

(a)  Information about location shall include a description or map of the 
resource area for each site. The information must be sufficient to 
determine whether a resource exists on a particular site. However, a 
precise location of the resource for a particular site, such as would be 
required for building permits, is not necessary at this stage in the process. 

(b)  Information on quality shall indicate a resource site's value relative to other 
known examples of the same resource. While a regional comparison is 
recommended, a comparison with resource sites within the jurisdiction 
itself is sufficient unless there are no other local examples of the resource. 
Local governments shall consider any determinations about resource 
quality provided in available state or federal inventories. 

(c)  Information on quantity shall include an estimate of the relative abundance 
or scarcity of the resource. 

(4)  Determine the significance of resource sites: For sites where information is 
adequate, local governments shall determine whether the site is significant. This 
determination shall be adequate if based on the criteria in subsections (a) 
through (c) of this section, unless challenged by the department, objectors, or the 
commission based upon contradictory information. The determination of 
significance shall be based on: 

(a)  The quality, quantity, and location information; 

(b)  Supplemental or superseding significance criteria set out in OAR 660-023-
0090 through 660-023-0230; and 

(c)  Any additional criteria adopted by the local government, provided these 
criteria do not conflict with the requirements of OAR 660-023-0090 
through 660-023-0230. 

(5)  Adopt a list of significant resource sites: When a local government determines 
that a particular resource site is significant, the local government shall include the 
site on a list of significant Goal 5 resources adopted as a part of the 
comprehensive plan or as a land use regulation. Local governments shall 
complete the Goal 5 process for all sites included on the resource list except as 



provided in OAR 660-023-0200(2)(c) for historic resources, and OAR 660-023-
0220(3) for open space acquisition areas. 

(6)  Local governments may determine that a particular resource site is not 
significant, provided they maintain a record of that determination. Local 
governments shall not proceed with the Goal 5 process for such sites and shall 
not regulate land uses in order to protect such sites under Goal 5. 

(7)  Local governments may adopt limited interim protection measures for those sites 
that are determined to be significant, provided: 

(a)  The measures are determined to be necessary because existing 
development regulations are inadequate to prevent irrevocable harm to 
the resources on the site during the time necessary to complete the ESEE 
process and adopt a permanent program to achieve Goal 5; and 

(b)  The measures shall remain effective only for 120 days from the date they 
are adopted, or until adoption of a program to achieve Goal 5, whichever 
occurs first. 

Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 197.040 
Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 197.040 & 197.225 - 197.245 
History: 
LCDD 1-2017, f. & cert. ef. 2-10-17 
LCDC 2-1996, f. 8-30-96, cert. ef. 9-1-96 

 



ghenrikson
Highlight











ghenrikson
Highlight





ghenrikson
Highlight



ghenrikson
Highlight





NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES LISTING (NHRP)

Ref# Property Name Status Listed Date Name of Multiple Property Listing City 

Street & 

Number Other Names

13001058 Astoria Marine Construction Company Historic District Listed 1/8/2014 Astoria 92134 Front Rd.  Astoria Shipbuilding Company

66000640 Fort Clatsop National Memorial Listed 10/15/1966 Astoria

4.5 mi. S of 

Astoria

89001385 ISABELLA Shipwreck Site and Remains Listed 9/21/1989 Astoria

Address 

Restricted  Sand Island Wreck

97000983 Bald Point Site (35CLT23) Listed 9/10/1997

 Native American Archeological Sites 

of the Oregon Coast MPS Cannon Beach

Address 

Restricted

97000984 Ecola Point Site (35CLT21) Listed 9/10/1997

 Native American Archeological Sites 

of the Oregon Coast MPS Cannon Beach

Address 

Restricted

97000982 Indian Creek Village Site (35CLT12) Listed 9/10/1997

 Native American Archeological Sites 

of the Oregon Coast MPS Cannon Beach

Address 

Restricted

92000066 West, Oswald, Coastal Retreat Listed 2/26/1992 Cannon Beach

1981 Pacific 

Ave.  West-Bouvy Log House Site

71000678 Fort Stevens Listed 9/22/1971 Hammond

Fort Stevens 

State Park  Fort Stevens Miltiary Reservation

84002959 Hlilusqahih Site (35CLT37) Listed 4/26/1984 Knappa

Address 

Restricted  Knappa Docks Site;35CLT37

81000480 Tillamook Rock Lighthouse Listed 12/9/1981 Seaside SW of Seaside  Tilly

84002960 Indian Point Site (35 CLT 34) Listed 5/9/1984 Svensen

Address 

Restricted  35CLT34;Ivy Station

92000128 Goodwin--Wilkinson Farmhouse Listed 3/9/1992 Warrenton

US 26/101 W 

of Cullaby Lake

OREGON STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICE HISTORIC SITES LISTING (SHPO)

Property 

Name Eligibility

National 

Register Status City Street & Number Date Built Notes

NC Arch Cape 79818 Cannon Road c. 1948 House rebuilt in 2019

NC Arch Cape Highway 101 c. 1937

UN Astoria Youngs Falls, Youngs River, C 6 miles SW of Astoria 1805

Astoria 92343 Fort Clatsop Road 1805

ES NRI Astoria 92134 Front Street

Main buildings partially 

demolished; outbuildings removed

NC Astoria 89130 Green Mountain Road c. 1935 Assessor lists house date as 1952

NC Astoria 40848 Hillcrest Loop Road

NC Astoria 34513 Highway 105 c. 1922

Highway 105 now Highway 101 

Business

EC Astoria Highway 202 c. 1920

EC Astoria 37573 Highway 30

NC Astoria 42925 Highway 30 c. 1948

NC Astoria 37457 Labske Lane c. 1940

ES Astoria 91755 Lewis and Clark Road 1912

NC Astoria 42285 Lois Loop c. 1947 Assessor lists house date as 1967

Willamette Meridian

Kinney, William S. and Mary Strong, House

42285 Lois Loop

89130 Green Mountain Road

40848 Hillcrest Loop Road

34513 Highway 105

Waluski River Bridge

Burlington Northern Santa Fe RR

42925 Highway 30

79818 Cannon Road

Arch Cape Tunnel #2247

Falls Pulp Company Mill Site

Fort Clatsop National Memorial (NMEM)

Astoria Marine Construction Company Historic District



NC Astoria 35198 Orchard Lane c. 1950

NC Astoria 37732 Parker Lane c. 1900

NC Astoria 91194 Youngs River Road c. 1936

ES NRI Cannon Beach vcty ADDRESS RESTRICTED

ES NRI Cannon Beach vcty ADDRESS RESTRICTED

ES NRI Cannon Beach vcty ADDRESS RESTRICTED

EC Cannon Beach  84318 Ecola Park Road 1806

ES Elsie vcty Highway 26 1939

EC Elsie vcty Lower Nehalem River Road 1937

EC Elsie vcty Sunset Highway 1930

EC Fern Hill 91973 John Day River Road c. 1920

UN Fort Stevens Fort Stevens State Park 1875

NC Gearhart 86645 Lewis & Clark Road

ES Hammond vcty 9N 1W35, 36

ES NRI Hammond vcty NW Hwy 101 1863

UN Knappa Brownsport Slough on March Island, Columbia River c. 1896

ES NRI Knappa vcty ADDRESS RESTRICTED

UN Knappa vcty Columbia River Highway c.1930

NC Knappa Koppisch & Old Hwy 30 c. 1910 May be 41900 Old Hwy 30

NC Knappa 92502 Tomberg Road c. 1910 Assessor lists house date as 1946

NC Knappa 92581 Tomberg Road c. 1945

ES NRI Seaside vcty Tillamook Rock, Off Tillamook Head 1879

UN Seaside  33395 Beerman Creek Road 1913

ES NRI Svensen vcty ADDRESS RESTRICTED c. 1400

NC Unincorporated Jeffers/Miles Crossing vcty

EC Unincorporated 1934

EC Unincorporated Hwy 102 1953

EC Unincorporated Hwy 102 1953

EC Unincorporated Hwy 26 c. 1939

EC Unincorporated Hwy 26 c. 1942

UN Unincorporated Nehalem Highway 1858 Highway 53

ES Warrenton 89391 101 Hwy Assessor lists house date as 1888

EC Warrenton vcty Delaura Beach Road c. 1942

NC Warrenton 89990 Hawkins Road 1922

EC Warrenton Hwy 101 1860

EC Warrenton Hwy 101 1840

EC Warrenton vcty 90475 Highway 101 c. 1913

EC Warrenton 90324 Lewis Road 1962

UN Warrenton 90325 Lewis Road

NC Warrenton McCarter Road

ES Warrenton 33168 Patriot Way c. 1935

ES Warrenton 33324 Patriot Way c. 1927

UN Warrenton 33345 Patriot Way 1927

UN Warrenton 91232 Pioneer Farm Lane c. 1860

See Morrison, Robert W, House;

Tagg Ranch Property

ES NRI Warrenton vcty 90959 US 101 1862

Assessor lists house date as 1935; 

significantly remodeled

EC Westport 1910

EC Westport Hwy 30 c. 1890

Westport Lumber Company Sawmill Site

West Creek Skid Road Tunnel

Yeon, Norman, Property

Camp Rilea

The Chateau Commanding Officer Residence

Gray Memorial Church, Columbia Beach, Gray Memorial Chapel, 

Morrison, Robert, Farmhouse

Goodwin-Wilkinson Farmhouse

N Fork Necanicum River Bridge

Astoria-Salem Military Wagon Road

Waterhouse, J D, Residence

Delaura Beach Road Complex

Clatsop Plains Pioneer Presbyterian Church

Lindgren, Eric, Log House

Morrison, Robert W, House

Clatsop Plains Cemetery

Pacific Grange Hall No. 413

Yeon, Norman, House

(35-CLT-34) Indian Point Site

Miles Crossing Sanitary District

West Humbug Creek Bridge (#01831)

Nehalem River Bridge (1953) at MP 35.08

Nehalem River Bridge (1953) at MP 32.06

Necanicum River (Black) Bridge No 02601

South Jetty at Mouth of Columbia River

Fort Stevens Miliary Reservation

Brownsport Cabin

(35-CLT-37) Hillusqahih Site

Gnat Creek Bridge

(House)

Sunset Wayside Loading Ramp

(House)

Point Adams Lighthouse

Timber Land

(House)

(House)

Tillamook Rock Lighthouse

Evergreen Cemetery

(35-CLT-23) Bald Point Site

(35-CLT-21) Ecola Point Site

(35-CLT-12) Indian Creek Village Site

Ecola State Park

Nehalem River Bridge

Yunker & Wicks Logging Camp

35198 Orchard Lane

37732 Parker Lane

91194 Youngs River Road



ARCHAEOLOGICAL SITES (SHPO)

Property Name

HISTORIC CEMETERIES (OREGON PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT)

Property 

Name

Alternate 

Names City 

Astoria

Astoria

Astoria

Astoria

Astoria

Brownsmead

Elsie

Hamlet

Hammond

Jewell

Olney

Olney

Olney

Olney

Seaside

Seaside

Seaside

Seaside

Svensen

Warrenton

Westport

HISTORIC RESOURCES  - CLATSOP COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN GOAL 5

Property 

Name Location Planning Area

Lewis & Clark Olney Wallooskee

Southwest Coastal

Seaside Rural

Seaside Rural, Clatsop Plains

Clatsop Plains

Clatsop Plains

Clatsop Plains

Clatsop Plains

Lewis & Clark Olney Wallooskee

Northeast

Northeast

Sites listed as a historic resource in Goal 5

The Shepherd and Morse Sawill Site T 8N, R 6W, Section 36

Westport Log Tunnel T 8N, R 6W, Section 36

Clatsop Plains Memorial Church T 7N, R 10W, Section 4

Clatsop Plains Cemetery T 7N, R 10W, Section 4

The Mill Site of the Falls Pulp Company T 7N, R 10W, Section 27

Ecola State Park

T 5N, R 10W, Sections 6, 7, 18

T 5N, R 11W, Sections 1, 12

T 6N, R 10W, Sections 29, 30, 31, 32

Lindgren House T 7N, R 10W, Section 22

R. W. Morrison House (aka Tagg Place) T 7N, R 10W, Section 4

Fort Clatsop National Monument T 7N, R 10W, Section 35

Cannon at Cannon Beach East side of Hwy 101 between Cannon Beach and Arch Cape

Tillamook Rock Lighthouse T 5N, R11W, Section 1

Svensen Cemetery Svensen Pioneer: Forest Hill; Pleasant Hill; Red Men's; Finnish; 

Clatsop Plains Pioneer Cemetery Pioneer Cemetery [Clatsop Co.]

Westport Cemetery

Grave of the Unknown Sailor

Meschelle, Jennie Marchino, Meschelle; Martineau, Michel; Tsin-is-tum

Unknown Sailors Seaside Cove Graves

Simmons Family Simmons Family; Simons Farm

Youngs River Grangers; Young, Andy

Burials, Clatsop Natives [Seaside] "Clatsop Indians"

Gronnell Family Gronnel

Dunkin, George "Indian George"

Fitcha Homestead Estoos; Lillenas

Sunny Hill Cemetery

Hamlet Cemetery

Fort Stevens Military Cemetery Soldier's Cemetery; US Army Fort Stevens; Solders; U.S. Army

Lewis and Clark Cemetery Riverview

Lupatia Crew

Mickelson Family Mickelson, Edith; Oja, Sophia

The State Historic Preservation Office lists 90 archaeological sites in Clatsop County.  The location of these sites is not publicly listed to prevent potential looting, scavenging, and destruction.

Greenwood Cemetery Crestview; Crestview-Greenwood Cemetery Association

Heckard Family

Knappa; PrairieKnappa Prairie

Eligibility Codes: ES = Eligible/Significant; EC = Eligible/Contributing; NC = Not Eligible/Non-contributing; NP = Not Eligible/Out-of-Period; UN = Undetermined; XD = Demolished

National Register Status Codes: NRI = Individually-Listed; NHD = Listed in Historic District; NRB = Listed Individually in Historic District; NHL = National Historic Landmark; NS = Included in Natoinal Register Listing



 

 

GOAL 5: NATURAL RESOURCES, SCENIC AND HISTORIC AREAS, 

AND OPEN SPACES 

 

PURPOSE: TO PROTECT NATURAL RESOURCES AND CONSERVE SCENIC AND HISTORIC AREAS AND OPEN SPACES. 

POLICY REVIEW 

CLATSOP COUNTY GOALS AND POLICIES 
GOAL 

MET (Y/N) 
RETAIN 
GOAL 
(Y/N) 

RECOMMENDED CHANGES 

HISTORIC RESOURCES POLICIES 

POLICY 1 
The County encourages the State Parks Division, when developing a master 
program for Ecola Park, to give proper recognition to the historical activities 
that occurred there. 

  STAFF NOTE: The Ecola State Park Master 
Plan was adopted in 1975 and has not been 
updated since that time. 
 
The Clatsop Plains CAC has provided the 
following recommendation on this policy: 
The Clatsop Tribe of the Chinook Nation 
would prefer proper recognition of historic 
activities that were done there – harvesting 
seafood, cedar and spruce. 

POLICY 2 
The County encourages the State Highway Division to relocate the Cannon 
Beach Cannon at a suitable new location should Highway 101 widening ever 
make the present site unsuitable. 

  STAFF NOTE: The original cannon has been 
relocated to the Cannon Beach Historical 
Society and Museum. Recommend deleting 
this goal. 

POLICY 3 
The County Parks Department, to the extent funding permits, will continue to 
maintain the Lindgren House. 

  STAFF NOTE: The house, located at Cullaby 
Lake Park, continues to be maintained by 
the County. 

POLICY 4 
The County encourages the Clatsop County Historical Society and the State 
Historic Preservation Office to place commerative plaques at the sites of the 
Falls Pulp Mill and the Shepherd and Morse Sawmill. 

  STAFF NOTE: Staff has emailed the Clatsop 
County Historical Society and SHPO to see if 
they have any information regarding this 
policy.  Staff had not yet received a reply at 
the date this worksheet was prepared. 

POLICY 5 
The Clatsop Plains Cemetery shall be protected from incompatible uses by 
placing it in the Open Space, Parks and Recreation Zone. 

  STAFF NOTE:  The cemetery is now zoned 
OPR (Open Space, Parks and Recreation).  
This policy is completed an should be 
removed. 

https://www.oregon.gov/oprd/PRP/Documents/PLA-Adopted-Ecola-2005.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/oprd/PRP/Documents/PLA-Adopted-Ecola-2005.pdf


 

 

GOAL 5: NATURAL RESOURCES, SCENIC AND HISTORIC AREAS, 

AND OPEN SPACES 

PURPOSE: TO PROTECT NATURAL RESOURCES AND CONSERVE SCENIC AND HISTORIC AREAS AND OPEN SPACES. 

POLICY REVIEW 

CLATSOP COUNTY GOALS AND POLICIES 
GOAL 

MET (Y/N) 
RETAIN 
GOAL 
(Y/N) 

RECOMMENDED CHANGES 

POLICY 6 
The County will protect the historical character of the Tillamook Lighthouse, 
Morrison House, the Clatsop Plains Memorial Church and the Westport Log 
Tunnel through appropriate provisions in the zoning ordinance. 

  STAFF NOTE: Section 3.192, Clatsop County 
Standards Document, details requirements 
designed to protect the mentioned historic 
sites.  Recommend changing language in 
this to policy to “The County will continue 
to protect…..” 

POLICY 7 
Clatsop County will work with the Clatsop County  Historical Society and the 
State Historic Preservation Office to evaluate the historical significance of sites 
and buildings identified by the Citizen Advisory Committee.  The Goal #5 
Administrative Rule evaluation process will also be applied at that time. The 
County will take appropriate action to protect any sites that are placed on the 
State of Oregon Inventory of Historic Sites and Buildings. This will be 
completed in the next two years. 

  STAFF NOTE:  Staff does not know how 
many, or which, sites or buildings were 
placed on the State of Oregon Inventory in 
1979-1980 when this policy was adopted.  
The current inventory contains 1,913 entries 
in all of Clatsop County.  Sixty of those 
entries are for sites within unincorporated 
Clatsop County.  Other than the 
requirements in Section 3.192, Standards 
Document, there are no other regulations in 
place to protect other historic resources. 

CULTURAL RESOURCES POLICIES 

POLICY 1 
The County will review land use activities that may affect known archeological 
sites. If it is determined that a land-use activity may affect the integrity of an 
archaeological site, the County shall consult with the State Historic 
Preservation Office on appropriate measures to preserve or protect the site 
and its contents. 

  STAFF NOTE:  Section 3.194, Standards 
Document, contains regulations regarding 
protection of archaeological sites. 
 
The Clatsop Plains CAC has previously 
provided the following recommended 
change to this policy: The County will review 
land use activities that will affect known 
archaeological sites. If it is determined that 
a land use activity may affect the integrity of 
an archaeology site, the County shall consult 



 

 

GOAL 5: NATURAL RESOURCES, SCENIC AND HISTORIC AREAS, 

AND OPEN SPACES 

PURPOSE: TO PROTECT NATURAL RESOURCES AND CONSERVE SCENIC AND HISTORIC AREAS AND OPEN SPACES. 

POLICY REVIEW 

CLATSOP COUNTY GOALS AND POLICIES 
GOAL 

MET (Y/N) 
RETAIN 
GOAL 
(Y/N) 

RECOMMENDED CHANGES 

with the Chinook Indian Nation and then the 
State Historic Preservation Office on 
appropriate measures to preserve or protect 
the site and its contents. 
 
Need definition of “archaeological” 
Need to include “cultural” 

POLICY 2 
Indian cairns, graves and other significant archaeological resources uncovered 
during construction or excavation shall be preserved intact until a plan for 
their excavation or reinternment has been developed by the State Historic 
Preservation Office. 

  STAFF NOTE:  Section 3.194, Standards 
Document, contains regulations regarding 
protection of archaeological sites. 
 
The Clatsop Plains CAC has previously 
provided the following recommended 
change to this policy:  Change “Indian” to 
“Chinook Indian Nation” 
Add “the Chinook Indian Nation” before 
“State Historic Preservation Office”. 

 



 

GOAL 5: IDENTIFICATION OF ISSUES AND DRAFT POLICIES 

HISTORIC AND CULTURAL RESOURCES 

 

HISTORIC RESOURCES POLICIES 
ISSUE TO BE ADDRESSED PROPOSED DRAFT LANGUAGE 

Bradwood Landing and Clifton are not considered as historic sites Policy not necessarily required.  CACs need to decide whether to include 
area as a listed historic resource in Goal 5 

Should County become a Certified Local Government  The County shall obtain public input in order to determine whether there is 
public support for the County becoming a Certified Local Government. 

  

CULTURAL RESOURCES POLICIES 
ISSUE TO BE ADDRESSED PROPOSED DRAFT LANGUAGE 

Need more public education and outreach regarding how to properly 
handle artifacts that might be found on private property 

The County shall, within two years of the date of adoption of this plan, 
develop a public education and outreach program to inform property 
owners about how to properly deal with found artifacts. 

Need to develop closer working relationship with Chinook Indian Nation The County shall identify ways to incorporate more input and cultural and 
historical knowledge from the Chinook Indian Nation.  Such methods may 
include revising the Planning Commission bylaws to include a member of 
the Chinook Indian Nation on the Commission and including the Chinook 
Indian Nation on all public notices. 

  

 

































PRESERVING 

CLATSOP COUNTY’S 

HISTORIC

RESOURCES
LOWER COLUMBIA PRESERVATION SOCIETY

13 MARCH 2020



WHAT IS LACKING?

A current on-the-ground reconnaissance-level survey of 
unincorporated areas including:

TOWNS

GHOST TOWNS

LOGGING CAMPS  

FARMS

Inventories provide the information necessary to locate and 
evaluate resources and develop programs to protect such 
resources.

Inventories themselves do not have any regulatory effect.



WHY A 

RECONNAISSANCE 

SURVEY IS IMPORTANT

“The local government will not have evaluated whether a 
resource is significant when the inventory is initially 
developed. That is, the inventory should include those 
resources that are potentially significant and worthy of 
protection.”

Inventory is an ongoing process. What was included on 
historic site lists from 40 years ago is an excellent start but 
not adequate to determine what might be included today.

A current survey would provide the opportunity to document, 
to a limited extent, what is extant from previous lists of sites 
as well as identify additional potentially significant sites.



COMP PLAN SHOULD 

ALSO ADDRESS:

Historic structures that are tax foreclosed by the County

Historic structures owned by the County

Dedication to ongoing inventory efforts



RECOMMENDATIONS

Inventory by town or area:

Olney

Jeffers Garden

Svensen

Knappa

Brownsmead Ecola Cullaby

Clifton Arch Cape Hamlet Lewis & Clark

John Day Chadwell Melville Albert

Elsie-Vinemaple Clatsop Plains Morrison

Bradwood Westport Smith Lake Sunset Lake



IDENTIFY THEMES

Inventory by theme:

Industry

Schools

Granges 

Farms/Barns

Storefronts



CHALLENGES

Funding historic inventories.

Contracting with out-of-area professionals.

Relying too heavily on local volunteers and organizations.

Identifying community members who can be resources in 

isolated areas. Create and maintain positive relationships in 

small communities by notifying them and asking them for 

assistance. People are a priceless sources of historic 

information. 

Rural inventories often require access to private properties.

Clearly articulating preservation goals and explaining opt-out 

rules to the public.



WAYS THE COUNTY CAN 

PRESERVE HISTORIC 

RESOURCES

DOCUMENT – THROUGH AN ONGOING INVENTORY PROCESS

DESIGNATE - ENCOURAGE NATIONAL REGISTER 
NOMINATIONS (BASE LEVEL OF PROTECTION)

EDUCATE & INCENTIVIZE – ENCOURAGE BY VOLUNTARY 
MEANS

SET AN EXAMPLE - BE GOOD STEWARDS OF COUNTY-OWNED 
HISTORIC PROPERTIES

EVALUATE SIGNIFICANCE, DESIGNATE PROPERTIES AND 
ADOPT A PRESERVATION ORDINANCE




